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COMMISSION 
BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

2011 PH 2: 47 

In the Matter of ) 
) CELA 

Conservatives for Congress and Jeffrey J. ) MUR 6378 
Hill, as treasurer; Jones Outdoor ) 
Advertising, Inc.; Dwight Jones (Case ) 
Closure EPS) ) 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Shawn Woodhead Werth, Secretary and Clerk of the Federal Election 

Commission, do hereby certify that on October 3 I,. 2011, the Commission 

decided by a vote of6-0 to take the following actions in MUR 6378: 

1. Find no reason to believe that Dwight Jones, and Conservatives for 
Congress and Jeffrey J. Hill, in his official capacity as treasurer, 
violated 2 U.S.C. § 44Id(a) and I 1 C.P.R.§§ I 10.1 1. 

2. Dismiss the allegation that Jones Outdoor Advertising, Inc., violated 
2 U.S.C. § 441d(a)(3) and 11 C.F.R. § 110.11. (b) and (c). 

3. Send a reminder letter to Jones Outdoor Advertising, Inc., 
concerning the Commission's disclaimer requirements, including the 
requirement that disclaimers on printed materials be included within 
printed boxes, pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a) and I I C.F.R. 
§§ llO.ll(b) and (c). 

4. Close the file and appro-ve the appropriate letters subject tb edits to 
the second paragraph as agroed to via email. 

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Petersen, Walther, and 

Weintraub voted affirmatively for the decision. 

Attest: 

Jfll.lo)r{( I. 0D II 
Date I 

~~flllhLti J vu 
Shawn Woodhead Werth 
Secretary and Clerk of the C mmission 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 
RETYRN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Christine Hammerle 
Counsel to the Giffords for 

Congress Campaign Committee 
Perking Coie Brown & Bain 
2901 N. Central AveDUe, Suite 2000 
Phoeni:11, AZ &5012-27·88 

Dear Ms. Hammerle: 

NOV -8 2011 

RE: MUR6378 

The Fedmil Election Commission reviewed the allegations in your complaint received on 
September 17,2010. On October 31, 2011, based upon the information provided in the 
complaint, and information provided by the respondents, the Commission decided to close its file 
in this matter. Accordingly, the Commissicxa olosecl its ftle in thiS matter on October 31, 2011. 

IlacumeBts mlated to the caoc wiU be plaed on the public r.ec".Ord within 30 days. ...r;ee 
Stldelamt of Policy Reganliqa Disclosure of Clcmed Enforoement aod lleiatacl Files, 68 Fed. 
Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). A copy of the dispositive General Counsel's Report is enclosed for 
your iDformation. The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a 
complainant to seek judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See 2 U.S.C. 
§ 437g (aXR). 

Sincurely, 

BY: 

Enclosure 
General Counsel's Report 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

Jeffrey J. Hill, Treasurer 
Conservatives far Congress 
8340 N Thomydale #452 
Tucson, AZ 85741 

Dear Mr. Hill: 

NOV -8 20n 

RE: MUR6378 

On September 23,2010, the Federal Election Commission notified The Conservatives for 
Congress ("Committee") and you, as treasurer, of a complaint alleging violations of certain 
sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amanded. 

On October 31, 2011, the Commission found, OD the basis of the i.aformation in the 
complaint, and information provided by the respondents, that there is oo :ua.4Jim to believe that 
the Committee and you, as treasurer, violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a) and 11 C.P.R.§§ 110.11. 
Accordingly, the Commission closed its file in this IDJltter. 

Docum.ents related to the case will be placect on th~ public record within 30 days. See 
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files, 
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). 

If you have any questions, please contact Frankie D. Hampton, the paralegal assigned to 
this matter at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

BY: . Jord 
upervisory 

Complaints · ·on and 
Legal Administration 

Enclosure 
General Counsel's Report 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL 

Lyle D. Aldrich 
Law Offices ofGabroy Rollman & Bosse P.C. 
3507 North Campbell Avenue, Suite 111 
Tucscm, Arizona 85719 

RE: MUR6378 

NOV -8 2011 

Jones Outdoor Advertising, Inc. 

Dear Mr. Aldrich: 

On September 23, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified your client of a 
complaint filed against Jones Outdoor Advertising, Inc., alleging violations of certain sections of 
the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("Act") and its underlying Commission 
regulations. On OcUJber 31' 2011 based upon the infOJmation eonUiitlllld in 1be complaint, and 
infimnetion provided by you, the Commillsion deaided m dismiss the campLoiot and cmsed its 
file in this matter. 

The Commission eacourages your client to review the General Counsel's Report, which 
sets forth the statutory and xegulatory provisions considered by the Commission in this matter. A 
copy of the dispositive General Counsel's Report is enclosed for your information BDd future 
reference. The Commission reminds your client, pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a) and 11 C.F.R. § 
110.1l(a), to take steps to ensunt that its conduct is in cemplianee with the Act and Commission 
regulations, including tho requixement that certain communiCJBtions include disclaimers adhering 
to the specifi01ldOIBlSd forth ic 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(c). 

For further information on the Act ami Commiuion regulations, please refer to the 
Commission"~s website at www.fec_gov or contact the Commission's Public Information Division 
at (202) 694-1 t 00. 

Docuinents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. 
See Statement ofPoHcy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Rdated Files, 68 Fed. 
Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). 



If you have any questions, please contact Frankie D. Hampton, the paralegal assigned to 
this matter at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincerely, 

BY: 

Enclosure 
General Counsel's Report 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

Lyle D. Aldrich 
Law Offices of Gabroy Rollman & Bosse P .C. 
3507 North Campbell Avenue, Suite 111 
Tucson,~a85719 

NOV -8 2011 

RE: MUR6378 
Dwight Jones 

Dear Mr. Aldrich: 

On September 23, 2010, the Federal Election Commission notified you of a complaint 
alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as 
amended. 

On Oetobtr 31, 2011, the Commi9Sion found, on tbe bas.is of the infom:18tion in the 
complaiat, and infonnation provided by the respondents, that there is no reason to believe that 
you violated 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 110.11. Accordingly, the Commission closed 
its file in this matter. · 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public recoid within 30 days. See 
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enlbrcement and Related Files, 
68 Fed. Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003). 

If you have any questions, please contact Frankie D. Hampton, the _paralegal assigned to 
this matter at (202) 694-1650. 

Enclosure 
General Counsel's Report 

Sincerely, 

BY: s. Jnnt:A"' 
upervisory Attorney 

Complaints Examination and 
Legal Administration 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of ) 
) 

MUR6378 ) 
CONSERVATIVES FOR CONGRESS ) 
AND JEFPRE.Y J. HILL, AS TREASURER) 
JONES Ot.n'DOOR ADVERTISING, INC. ) 
DWIGIIT JONES ) 

DISMISSAL AND CASE 
CLOSURE UNDER THE 
ENFORCEMENT PRIORITY 
SYSTEM 

GENERAL COUNSEL'S RJPORT 

~RECEIVED 
FEDERAL ELEGTION 

COHHI~SION 

2011 SEP lla AM 10: 37 

CELA 
.• 

Under the Enforcement Priority System ("EPS"), the Commission uses formal scoring criteria 
".J 

to allocate its re.sa.JI!CCS BDd decide which cases to pursue. These criteria itr.lude, but are not ·limited to, 

an assessment of (1) the gravity of the alleged violation. both with respect to the type of activity and 

the amount in violation, (2) the apparent impact the alleged violation may have had on the electoral 

process, (3) the legal complexity of issues raised in the case, (4) recent trends in potential violations of 

the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended f'Act"), and (S) development of the law with 

respect to certain subject matters. lt is the Commission's policy that pursuing low-rated matters, 

compared to other higher-rated matters on the Enforccmem docket, warrants the exercise oi its 

prosecatorial disaetion to dismia certain cases, or in certain cues where then: are no facts to support 

the aDeptiou, to make no JUSOu to belicrn findings. The Oftleu of Gcnernl Cci!DSil bas tcorud 

MUR 6378 u ill low-rated Bt!tter and has abo determined dlat it sballd not be teftiR!d to t1J£ 

Alternative D'.spute Resollldon Office. 

For the reasons set forth below, this Office rccommeucls lhat the Commission make no ~on 

to believe findings as to respondents Conservatives for Congress and 1effrey J. Hill, in his official 

capacity as treasurer• (collectively ''the Committee''), and Dwight Jones. We further recommend that 

AI the lime of rhe cxm~plaillt, Sean. Mc:Caftiey was the aasurer for d1e Commluee, but be wu replaced on 
October S. 10 I 0 bJ!' feffrey J. Hill. See Amended SlllenleDl of arp.izatioll dated Oclobtr S, 2010. 
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Dismissal and Case Closure 
General Cauuel's R::pon- MUR 6378 
Page2 

1 the Commission dismiss this matter as to respondent Jones Outdoor Advertising, Inc. (11Jones Outdoor 

2 Advertising''). 
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The complainant. Christine Hammerle, counsel to Giffords for Congress, asserts that the 

respondent Committee violated the Act and underlying Commission regulations by failing to inciude 

disclaimers bn three putilic billboanls, in apparent violation of 2 U.S.C. f 441d(a) md 11 C.F.R. 

If llO.ll(a) and (b)(3). As aa example. attaebed to the compaiat is a pbotoaraph of a billiload that 

reads, .. PELOSI'S. PUPPET? GABBY'S GOITA GOI'' The aomplainaiit alleges that the bilfuoard 

fails to disolose tha ideotity of the iadividual or cmtity that paid for and 81.11horized the billboards, but 

obrerves that similar lang11age appe.-a ou communications associated with the Committee. 

Specifically, according to the complainant. a screenshot taken from the Committee's website, 

www.conservativesforcongress.org, printed on September 9, 2010, includes the phrase ''Gabby's gotta 

go." The website also includes YouTube videos with frames entided "Pelosi's Puppet" that include 

images of Pelosi holding strings attached to Gifford. 

Subsequently, the complainant amended her complaint by provid"lll8 us with an email from a 

reporter dun had apparently been forwarded by the Committee. In the email, the Committee states that 

it did not pay for, authorize. ot prodac:a 118 Pcdoai/Gifford biDboanl adYctisemeats. Instead, Ule 

Conunihe aplains that my such ulvertisem1111ta ware placed by Mr. Dwigh: Joau of Jonas Outdoor. 

Adveat.!sing. 

Tlte Committee, Jones Outdoor: Advertising. and Mr. Jonea all filed responses. The Committee, 

which denies paying for, producing, authorizing, or having any other involvement with the signs, s~tes 

that they were placed by Mr. Jdnes or his company, without any input from the Committee. Jones 

Outdoors Advertising confiiiDS that the Committee was not involved. and states that it placed the 

advertisements in question on billboard structures that it owned. Although Jones Outdoors Advertising 

states that its name appeared .. in isolation" on the signs, it acknowledges that its address, website, 
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Dismissal and Case Closure 
Genaal Coa·na:l"s Report- MUR 6378 
Pagel 

telephone number. and the fact that the messages were not authorized by any candidate or candidate 

committee were omitted. Jones Outdoor Advertising explains that media coverage of the Citizens 

United decision left it with the understanding that the disclosure requirements had been negated but 

upon being "informed of the statute, .. the company states that it included the requisite disclaimer 

infommtion on the signs. Attached to its response are color photos of three billboards, which include 

tho pHrase "Paid for by Jcmes Outdoor AdYenl&iRy, IDe., www.joneLaoutdoor.com. This comm.micaticm 

not autlmrimd by any aandidate w candida's mmmiltDC. •• The COIDIDIJoicatioi'IS .am, however, aot 

enclosal within printed boxes. Sea 11 C.P.R. ll10.11(c)(2)(ii). 

Fmally, Mr. Jones acknowledges that, in his capacity as president of Jones Outdoor 

Advertising, he caused his company to post the billboards at issue, and used cmporate funds to do so. 

Mr. Jones states that, before having the billboards erected, he sought legal advice as to whether 

disclaimers were required, and was informed that they were not. The response also notes that the 

disclaimers were affixed to the billboards within days of receiving the complaint in this matter. 

Under the Act and Commission regulations, all public communications1 made by a political 

committee must include disclai=rs. 2 U.S.C. l44ld(a)(l); ne tJlso 11 C.F .R. §110.11(a). ln 

addition, public communicaliaDS that ars JIDt autharimd by a caa.didate must iDclade. disclaiau:m 

statiq Ill• 1181118 and penmment s~t address •. telephoae nmabnr or World W:ida Web addraa •f tha 

per.8CUI who paid far the C0111Dl1.1Dication, as well as stating tltat the CODUDDD:icarion is DOt. audJmiad by 

any C811didate or candidate's committee. 2 U.S.C.§441d(a)(3); see also 11 C.F.R § 110.ll(b)(3). 

Moreover. such disclaimers must be contained within a box, as required under 11 C.F.R. 

l110.11(c)(2)(ii). Infonnation provided by complainant in the amended complaint appears to 

2 "Public commanicaticms• include my communication "by means of any bmadcur, ca1Jle, or sareiJit~ 
communication. newspaper, mapzillcw outdoor advertising facllily, massnilins, or telephone bank 10 the sener-1 public. 
or Bny ather farm af p:aeral pubiill palkioallll¥Cni•i.Gc.• 11 C.P.R. 1100.36. 
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Dismissal and Case Closure 
General Counsel's Report- MUR 6378 
Page41 

conoborate the response that the signs do not belong to the Committee, but instead appear to be pan of 

an independent effon by Jones Outdoor Advertising, the company that owns the billboard structures.3 

In light of the submissions in this matter, this Office recommends that the Commission find no 

reason to believe that Dwight Jones (in his individual capacity), Conservatives for Congress and 

JeffR:y I. Hill, in his official capacity as treuuttr, violab:d 2 U.S.C.§44ld(a) and 11 C.f'.R.§llO.ll. 

Widl respect to n:spondaat, Jona Outdoor Advcdisiq, it appars the company took patial remedial 

actioa by Q(l..ding verbiage to ill signs disclosing that "www.joneaoutd.oor.aom" had paid for tkc 

billboards and that the communications were not authorized by any candidate or candidate's 

committee, as required by 2 U.S.C .. §44ld(a)(3) and 11 C.F.R.§110.11(b)(3). Therefore, under EPS, 

the Office of General Counsel has scored MUR 6378 as a low-rated matter and in furtherance of the 

Commission's priorities, as discussed above, the Office of General Counsel believes that the 

·Commission should dismiss this matter as to Jones Outdoor Advertising. See Heclcler v. Ch!Jnq, 470 

U.S. 821 (1985). Additionally, this Office recommends that the Commission remind Jones Outdoor 

Advertising, Inc., concerning the Commission's disclaimer requirements, including the requirement 

that disclaimers on printed materials be iDcluded within printed boxes, pilauant to 2 U.S.C'.f441d(a) 

16 and 11 C.F.R.IIllO.ll(b) and (c). 

17 
18 

1 Although not specifically raised in lhe complaint, we note that it is possible that Jones Outdoor Advertisiag may 
ha't: been required to report tbe costs usociated witb the billboards as independent expenditureS. HoMver, given lhe 
apparent limited scope of tbe activity at issue, we do not recommend punuing dlis iasue any further. 
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Dismissal and Case Closure 
General Counsel's Report- MUR 6378 
PageS 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Dati 

1. Find no reason to believe that Dwight Jones, and Conservatives for Congress and 
Jeffrey J. Hill, in his official e:apacity as treasurer, ¥iolatcd 2 U.S.C. § 44ld(a) and 11 
C.F.R.§llO.ll; 

2. Dismiss the allegation that Jones Outdoor Advertising, Inc., violated 2 U.S.C. 
§441d(aX3) and 11 C.P.R. §§ 110.ll(b) and (c); and 

3. Send a reminder letter ta1ones Outdoor Advertising, Inc .• aonceming the Commission's 
disclaimer requirements, including the requirement that disclaimers on printed materials 
be incltlded within prinEd boxes, pursuant to 2 U.S.C. f44ld(a) and 11 C.P.R. 
§§110.11(b) B;Dd (c). 

4. Close the filt and approve the appropriate letters. 

• 

Christopbct Hughey 
Acting General Counsel 

BY:~ GIC:Bf 
Special Counsel 
Complaints Examination 
& Legal Administration 

llUth HeitiZCl 
Attorney 
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